1978

Bank of Salt Lake, A Utah Corporation, And
Norton Parker, An Individual v. Globe Leasing
Corporation, A Utah Corporation; Al Weigelt And
Gloria Morrison, Individuals : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action for damages for the defendant's alleged tortious interference with the business relations of the plaintiffs arising out of defendant's actions in terminating a financing arrangement with the plaintiff Globe; sending a notice of assignment of leases to the lessees of the plaintiff Globe; and dishonoring three checks drawn by Globe on its account with defendant.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The case was tried to the court. From a judgment for the plaintiff Globe Leasing and a dismissal of defendant's counterclaims, defendant appeals. The court below found no cause of action for plaintiffs Alfred B. Weigelt and Gloria Morrison Weigelt and dismissed all claims against individual defendant, Norton Parker.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant seeks a reversal of the judgment and judgment in its favor as a matter of law on the question of its liability, or that failing, a new trial on the question of liability. Alternatively, defendant seeks reversal of the award of damages to plaintiff and the denial of any award of damages to plaintiff as a matter of law, or that failing, a new trial on the issue of damages. Finally, and in addition to the foregoing, defendant seeks the reversal

of the judgment of dismissal on its counterclaims and judgment in its favor with an appropriate award of damages on those counterclaims which are addressed in argument hereafter, as a matter of law, or that failing, a new trial on the counterclaims of the defendant.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The actions of Appellant, Commercial Security Bank of Salt Lake (the Bank) complained of by Appellee, Globe Leasing Corporation (Globe) occurred in and around July of 1974. (Tr Vol. 1 at 47-59) Specifically, on or about July 15, 1974, the Bank mailed letters to persons or entities who had leased automobiles from Globe. (Tr Vol. 1 at 47-48; Vol. 2 at 98-102) The letters so sent informed the respective lessees of Globe that Globe had assigned the lessee's lease to the Bank and, further, that the Bank was now requesting that any further rental payments be made directly to the Bank instead of to Globe. (Exhibit 9-P) Also on July 15, 1974, pursuant to the instructions of Mr. Norton Parker, the then President of the Bank, the Bank determined to terminate further extension of credit to Globe for its automobile leases. (Tr Vol. 1 at 49-50) At or about this same time, Mr. Parker was informed that there were in house, or in process, three additional leases of Globe for which funds by the Bank had not yet been advanced. (Tr Vol. 1 at

51-52; Vol. 2 at 106-108) After a discussion with Mr. Alfred B. Weigelt, the principal owner and chief executive officer of Globe, the only other employee being his wife Gloria, Mr. Parker determined to honor the Bank's commitment to extend financing for those last three leases. (Tr Vol. 1 at 54, 133-134; Vol. 2 at 106-108) After having instructed bank employees to continue processing those three leases, Mr. Parker discovered that, contrary to his past experience or practice in such matters, the Bank had issued credit advices to the account of Globe in the amount of the sums advanced to Globe for the purchase of the automobiles which were to be subject of the three leases. (Tr Vol. 2 at 129-132) Because of a previous experience with one Naylor auto in which it was apparent that the funds credited to Globe for the purchase of an automobile subject to a lease being financed by the Bank, had not been used to purchase that automobile, Mr. Parker wishing to insure that that situation would not again arise, ordered that the credit advices to Globe's account be reversed. (Tr Vol. 2 at 129-130) Upon receipt of notice of the said credit advices, Globe drew checks for the purchase of the three automobiles subject to the leases for which funds had been advanced by the Bank. (Tr Vol. 1 at 52; Vol. 2 at 130-131) The automobile dealers

to whom those three checks were issued brought the checks in person to the Bank to have them cashed. (Tr Vol. 1 at 128-129) Because the credit advices had been reversed at the direction of Mr. Parker, the said automobile dealers were informed that the checks would not be honored by the Bank. Mr. Parker attempted to arrange for an alternate method of advancing the funds on the final three leases. He caused three cashier's checks to be issued in the name of Globe and the respective dealer from whom the automobile would be purchased. Globe was then notified that those checks were available at the Bank and could be picked up for use in payment for the three automobiles. Globe refused to receive the funds advanced to it by the Bank in that form and subsequently, through negotiations between the two parties, a method of payment was agreed upon and checks drawn by Globe to the three dealers were honored. (Tr Vol. 1 at 52-55, 132-134; Vol. 2 at 131)

On or about July 17, 1974 the Bank notified Globe by telegram that it would no longer extend credit to Globe. (Exhibit 30-D)

For an understanding of the context in which the actions of the Bank on or about July 15, 16 and 17 of 1974, took place, it is necessary to provide some history and background of the relationship between the Bank and Globe

prior to that time. The relationship had its beginning some-
time in July of 1973 barely a year before the events which
gave rise to this lawsuit. Mr. Weigelt, seeking financing
for a proposed automobile leasing company which would later
become Globe, came to the Bank at that time in 1973 to make
a presentation. (Tr Vol. 1 at 3-5) It appears that Mr.
Weigelt's contact with the Bank was principally through
Mr. James W. Perry, at that time employed by the Bank as a
Vice President in the consumer loan area. (Tr Vol. 1 at 3-
11; Vol. 2 at 15-16) The record as to the sequence of events
at that time is less than clear, however, it appears that
Mr. Weigelt also had the opportunity to make a presentation
of some kind to other officers of the Bank. (Tr Vol. 1 at
8-9) In any event, the result of Mr. Weigelt's solicitations
was that his proposal was presented to the loan committee of
the Bank which determined to turn down his application for
financing. (Tr Vol. 2 at 15-16)

Shortly after the meeting of the loan committee at
which Globe's application for financing was denied, Mr.
Parker spoke with Mr. Perry concerning the Globe proposal.
At that time, Mr. Parker instructed Mr. Perry to "try a few"
of the Globe leases. (Tr Vol. 2 at 16-17) It also appears,
that Mr. Parker told Mr. Perry that he should try a few
leases up to a limit of about \$30,000 or \$40,000. (Tr Vol.

2 at 43-44) Pursuant to that discussion, Mr. Perry sent a letter to Mr. Weigelt purporting to confirm an agreement entered into between Globe and the Bank. In that letter, Mr. Perry informed Mr. Weigelt that:

This agreement covers the assignment of lease contracts to this bank from time to time as generated through your normal business activities, and will remain in force until written notice is received by either party to effect the termination.

(Exhibit 8-P) That letter from Mr. Perry apparently began a series of transactions between Globe and the Bank on some 64 motor vehicle leases generated by Globe. (Exhibit 17-P)

The apparent procedure used in effecting those transactions was as follows: Globe as an automobile leasing company would locate prospective lessees. Globe would make its own credit check of the prospective lessee and provide the Bank with credit information necessary for the Bank to complete its own independent credit check of the prospective lessee. After approval by the Bank, both of the credit of the prospective lessee and the amount to be advanced by the Bank on the lease, Globe would apparently complete the lease transaction by ordering the car subject of the lease, execute the lease, execute a motor vehicle security agreement with the Bank as secured party, and execute an assignment of the lease. The lease, lease assignment and security agreement would then be forwarded to the Bank at which time

a credit advice in the amount to be advanced on the lease would be issued by the Bank to the account of Globe. (Exhibit 17-P) The Bank apparently set up the accounting for the transactions with Globe on a main computer account with Globe as the "dealer" and with each of the individual leases which had been assigned to the Bank on a separate sub-account. (Tr Vol. 1 at 11-26; Vol. 2 at 19-42) Each month, the Bank would debit Globe's operating account with the Bank for the sums owing on each of the lease accounts.

There were some exceptions to the above mode of effectuating the lease and lease assignment transaction between Globe and the Bank. Although originally the amount of the funds which Globe requested that the Bank advance on each lease was in the amount of the purchase price of the automobile subject to the lease, Globe changed that practice and began requesting the amount of the purchase price of the automobile plus 10% additional. (Tr Vol. 1 at 12-13, 41-42; Vol 2. at 57, 123) In one specific instance, Globe received as the proceeds of the loan on a lease to Donald L. Hildreth the sum of \$8,546.41. The lease which was assigned by Globe to the Bank in exchange for the advance of the funds was not in fact a valid lease as the signature of Mr. Hildreth had been forged thereon. (Tr Vol. 1 at 42-47, 66, 89-104, 146-156) There had been, in fact, a lease of an

automobile to Mr. Hildreth by Globe. However, the lease of said automobile to Mr. Hildreth was not upon the same terms as those represented in the lease with the forged signature which was assigned to the Bank by Globe. (Exhibit 26-D) (Tr Vol. 1 at 92). The actual lease between Globe and Mr. Hildreth provided for a prepayment of the rentals on that lease in the sum of \$3,500.00. (Tr Vol. 1 at 92-94) Each assignment of lease executed by Globe to the Bank contained a provision prohibiting such prepayment without the written consent and authorization of the Bank. (Exhibit 20-P) Neither the prepayments nor any sums received in payment for the purchase of the automobile were paid to the Bank at the time of their receipt by Globe. Rather, Globe allowed the Bank to continue to debit its account in accordance with the lease payment terms of the lease which had been given to the Bank. (Tr Vol. 1 at 100)

Another instance of departure from the procedure above described, was an instance in which Globe received funds from the Bank for the purchase of a 1974 Pontiac subject to a lease which was to be assigned to the Bank. Contrary to the terms of the Motor Vehicle Security Agreement given to the Bank in conjunction with the lease assignment of that Pontiac, Globe had, in fact, previously received a loan for the purchase of that same automobile from

valley Bank & Trust Company and had granted to Valley Bank & Trust Company a security interest in the same vehicle. Upon discovery of this instance of double financing, and in order to make good its security interest in the automobile, the Bank paid to Valley Bank & Trust Company the sum of \$3,165.95. (Tr Vol. 1 at 111-115; Vol. 2 at 158-160)

In a further departure from the established procedure which departure was a major factor in the actions taken by the Bank at the direction of Mr. Parker on July 15, 1974, Globe obtained the approval of Mr. Perry on one lease to a company called Leisureamerica. However, fourteen other leases to that same company were processed by the Bank apparently without the knowledge or approval of Mr. Perry.

(Tr Vol. 1 at 116-118; Vol. 2 at 66-75, 110) Leisureamerica Company was, in fact, a very bad credit risk. Just prior to July 15, 1974, Mr. Perry was on vacation. During the period of Mr. Perry's absence, Mr. Parker had occasion to make inquiry concerning the relationship of the Bank with Globe.

(Tr Vol. 2 at 96-98) He discovered that instead of a total sum of \$30,000 to \$40,000 in leases, the Bank had advanced in excess of \$390,000 on Globe leases and Mr. Parker thereupon began an immediate investigation of the files relating to Globe. In the process of such investigation, he discovered the leases to Leisureamerica. (Tr Vol. 2 at

96-98)

Globe began operations sometime in July of 1973. At that time, because of the letter from Mr. Perry to Mr. Weigelt, Globe, a previously non-existent entity began operation as a Utah corporation. Previous to the time of the Bank's indication that it was willing to advance funds for the leasing operation contemplated by Mr. Weigelt, Globe had been unable to begin operation as a result of Mr. Weigelt's inability to obtain financing from any other banking institution. (Tr Vol. 1 at 122-123) This failure was not withstanding the considerable efforts of Mr. Weigelt in making presentations at a number of other institutions in the community. Globe was capitalized for only about \$3,000.00. (Tr Vol. 1 at 120, 219) On that capitalization, Globe proceeded to generate over \$390,000 in outstanding leases. (Tr Vol. 1 at 219) Then, one year after the initiation of the relationship between the Bank and Globe (Tr Vol. 1 at 219), the latter failed to obtain alternate financing and closed its business with the exception of operating as a broker for some six leases later in 1974. (Tr Vol. 1 at 216-218)

ARGUMENT

I.

THE FINDINGS OF FACT MADE BY THE TRIAL COURT DO NOT SUPPORT THE CONCLUSION OF LAW THAT APPELLANT IS LIABLE FOR TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH THE BUSINESS RELATIONS OF THE APPELLEE.

In Mason v. Mason, 108 Utah 428, 160 P.2d 730

(1945) the court held, citing earlier Utah cases:

"It is fundamental that the conclusions of law must be predicated upon and find their support in the findings of fact, and the judgment must follow the conclusions of law" and if the conclusions are at variance with the findings, the Supreme Court will order the lower court to set aside its erroneous conclusions and substitute correct ones therefor A judgment in conformity with the findings will not be disturbed. And, of course, the converse is true. A judgment not in conformity with the findings cannot be permitted to stand. (Emphasis added.)

Id. at 732. That fundamental proposition has applicability in the review of the findings of fact and conclusions of law, which resulted in a judgment of liability against Appellant, Commercial Security Bank of Salt Lake ("Bank") in this case.

In paragraph 1 of the Conclusions of Law, the court states:

The acts of defendant Bank of Salt Lake outlined in the First, Second, Third, and Fifth Causes of Action constitute a tortious interference by the Bank of Salt Lake in the business activities of Globe Leasing, and all four causes are deemed merged. (Emphasis added.)

The findings of fact entered by the court do not support the conclusion that there was "tortious interference" by the Bank. The substance of the relevant findings made by the

court is that:

1. The Bank extended credit to the Appellee, Globe Leasing ("Globe"), to finance leases generated by Globe;
 2. The credit was extended pursuant to an agreement evidenced by a letter signed by an officer of the Bank, James W. Perry;
 3. Certain security devices were employed to secure credit extended, such devices including an assignment of each and every lease generated with funds advanced by the Bank;
 4. On or about July 15, 1974, the Bank "commenced dishonoring" Globe's checks, terminated the line of credit (notification of the same was given by telegram July 17, 1974), directed letters to all of Globe Leasing's lessees requesting that payment be made to the Bank on the leases, and impounded funds in Globe's accounts at the Bank;^{1/}
 5. The above actions caused damage to Globe.
- The holding of the trial court was simply that because the Bank had dishonored checks (for whatever reason, justified or not), sent letters to lessees directing that lease payments be made to the Bank instead of to Globe

1/ There is no allegation in the First, Second, Third, and Fifth Causes of Action concerning the impoundment of funds by the Bank.

(whether or not a right to do so existed in the assignment agreement and under the applicable provisions of Utah law) and terminated further financing (whether or not a right to so terminate was included in the financing agreement), the Bank tortiously interfered in the business relations of Globe. Under no theory of tortious interference would the general factual finding of the above actions by a defendant be sufficient to establish a finding of tortious interference with business relations.

One of the theories advanced by Globe as a basis for the liability of the Bank is that of slander of credit or libel of business. One prominent commentator has characterized this theory of tortious interference as "injurious falsehood" or "disparagement".^{2/} In summarizing the elements of tortious interference, that same authority states:

The cause of action . . . resembles that for defamation, but differs from it materially in the greater burden of proof resting on the plaintiff and the necessity for special damage in all cases. The falsehood must be communicated to a third person, since the tort consists of interference with the relation with such persons. But the plaintiff must plead and prove not only the publication and its disparaging innuendo, as in defamation, but something more. There is no presumption, as in the case of slander, that the disparaging statement is false, and the

^{2/} W. L. Prosser, Handbook of the Law of Torts, §128 at 919 (4th ed. 1971).

plaintiff must establish its falsity as a part of his cause of action. (Emphasis added.)

W. L. Prosser, Handbook of the Law of Torts, §128 at 920 (4th ed. 1971). Utah law comports with this general statement of the elements of the cause of action. Accord, Pender v. Dowse, 1 Utah 2d 283, 291, 265, P.2d 644 (1954) and Western States Title Insurance Co. v. Warnock, 18 Utah 2d 70, 415 P.2d 316, 318 (1966). The court made no finding of fact that any statement or publication or action constituting a statement or publication of the Bank was disparaging or was false as applied to Globe.

Another form of tortious interference which is generally recognized is that of interference with contractual relations. Obviously, an element of that cause of action is interference with some existing contractual relationship of the plaintiff. Specifically, the action is for inducing a party to breach a contract with the plaintiff. There was no evidence and no finding of fact by the trial court that any party with whom Globe had an existing contractual relationship was induced to breach such a contract. The fact, if the court had so found, that lessees made lease payments, pursuant to notice, directly to the Bank rather than to Globe is no showing of a breach of contract with Globe on the part of the lessees.

Further, the law concerning liability for inducing a breach of contract includes the opportunity for a defendant to plead and prove an absolute privilege for taking the action complained of by the plaintiff. See Bunnell v. Bills, 13 Utah 2d 83, 90, 368 P.2d 597, 602-03 (1962) and Gammon v. Federated Milk Producers Ass'n., 11 Utah 2d 421, 426, 360 P.2d 1018, 1022 (1961). The record contains ample evidence of the existence of such a privilege for the Bank pursuant to the terms of the assignment agreements. The undisputed facts and law relating to such rights will be discussed more completely hereinafter. Notwithstanding, the factual findings of the trial court are absolutely devoid of any statement that the Bank was not privileged to take the actions which it did. The conclusion that liability exists for tortious interference on the basis of those actions is, therefore, faulty and must be reversed with directions to enter a conclusion of law to the contrary.

Globe may, however, argue that there is implied in the findings of fact, as presently constituted, a finding that no absolute privilege existed. Because evidence on the issue of privilege was presented at trial, a finding of liability by the trial court impliedly negates the existence, in fact, of any such privilege. However, the established

law in our state has been announced as follows:

We are at a loss to understand why no findings of fact were made in the instant case. The right to resort to the courts for the adjudication of grievances and the settlement of disputes is a fundamental and important one! An indispensable requisite to fulfilling that responsibility is the determination of questions of fact upon which there is disagreement. It is for this reason that our rules impose the duty of making findings on all material issues. Rule 52 U.R.C.P. provides that: "In all actions tried upon the facts without a jury *** the court shall unless the same are waived, find the facts specially and state separately the conclusions of law thereon." In Baker v. Hatch, the court declared:

*** It is the duty of the trial court to find upon all issues raised by the pleadings, and the failure to do so is reversible error. [Citing authorities] (Emphasis added.)

Legrand Johnson Corporation v. Peterson, 18 Utah 2d 260, 420 P.2d 615, 616 (1966). The trial court has not "found the facts specially" upon the issue of privilege. There is, therefore, reversible error in this case.

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