1978

Bank of Salt Lake, A Utah Corporation, And
Norton Parker, An Individual v. Globe Leasing
Corporation, A Utah Corporation; Al Weigelt And
Gloria Morrison, Individuals : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In order to expedite the review of this Court, respondent will accept appellant's Statement of Facts with those reservations pointed out in the Argument. Throughout the Argument this Court's attention will be directed to any facts taken out of context by the appellant and those facts which are misleading or are incorrect statements of fact or law.

Respondent will also point out that appellant often relies on general rules of law as stated in secondary sources but has apparently neglected to read the cases annotated therein which creates distortion and misstatements of certain rules.

Any statements or arguments of the appellant not specifically challenged hereinafter are submitted to this Court on their own merits.

ARGUMENT

I.

THE FINDINGS OF FACT MADE BY THE TRIAL COURT SUPPORT THE CONCLUSION OF LAW THAT APPELLANT IS LIABLE FOR TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH THE BUSINESS RELATIONS OF THE RESPONDENT.

Appellant's Brief correctly states the rule of law in Utah (Mason v. Mason, 108 Utah 428, 160 P.2d 730 (1945) as applied to the instant case. Respondent would iterate and emphasize one sentence therein "...A judgment in conformity with the findings will not be disturbed."

Appellant asserts, inter alia, that one of the Court's Findings of Facts, i.e., that the bank impounded funds in Globe accounts at the bank, is not alleged in any of the causes of action set forth in the Complaint. Appellant, therefore, ignores count eleven of the first cause of action, "That the Bank of Salt Lake failed to credit Globe Leasing Corporation's checking account for the proceeds of the three leases and that upon subsequent inquiry by the personnel of Globe Leasing Corporation, the representative of the defendant, Bank of Salt Lake, on or about July 1974, advised plaintiff, Globe Leasing Corporation, that the leases would not be honored and that Globe Leasing Corporation account would not be credited with amounts representing proceeds of the three leases." It is certainly not inconceivable that the Court below found the actions of the bank, in effect seizing the value of the three leases, tantamount to impounding funds belonging to Globe.

However, if appellant insists that the Court mistakenly had reference to the two accounts of Globe at the bank which were in fact frozen by the bank (cf Tr. 63, testimony of Mr. Weigelt and Tr. Vol. II 173, testimony of Mr. Stats) and overlooked that the impoundment of some \$3,800 [sic] (Tr. Vol. II 173) by the bank was not alleged in any of the causes of action included in the Court's Findings of Fact, appellant should be aware that such erroneous findings have consistently been held by this Court and the majority of jurisdictions to be but harmless error.

Chournos v. Evona Investment Company, 97 Utah 335, rehearing denied 97 Utah 346, 93 P.2d 450, 453, rehearing denied 94 P.2d 470 (1939), stands for the proposition that an erroneous finding by the Court below will not constitute a ground for reversal where, as here, appellant was not prejudiced thereby.

The leading California cases on point go even further. In Gray v. Janss Investment Company, 196 Cal. 634, 200 P. 401, 404 (1921), the Supreme Court of California ruled that a variance in the pleadings and the findings which "could not have so misled or surprised the defendants as to have placed them at a disadvantage... cannot be held to warrant the reversal of the judgment.

Where a case proceeds upon the hypothesis that an issue has been raised and findings are made upon such an issue, the complaint becomes immaterial and judgment on the findings will be upheld. (Citations omitted). A finding is not to be overthrown merely because it is more

specific than the allegation. Ramos v. Pacheco,
64 C.A.2d 304, 148 P.2d 704, 707 (1944).

The evidence before the Court below clearly demonstrates that the bank could have been in no way surprised by the assertion that they impounded Globe's funds. The record shows that Globe's Motion to Release (those same) Impounded Funds was argued and a minute order entered on August 13, 1974 that the bank "place the impounded funds in a position to draw the highest interest available" (awaiting final disposition of the lawsuit.)

The issue of the impounded funds in the two Globe accounts was raised at trial considerably by both sides and, as in Ramos, is more specific than the Complaint. The significance of a few thousand dollars to the whole of the Findings and Conclusions is hardly significant and is not prejudicial to appellant's case. Appellant's assertion, therefore, if correct, is harmless error, and the other Findings set forth are sufficient to sustain the judgment.

It is a well settled rule of law in Utah that error in the Findings notwithstanding, if there are other Findings which can sustain the judgment, then the judgment shall be sustained. That rule, stated by this Court in Thomas v. Foulger, 71 Utah 274, 264 P. 975 (1928), has not been seriously challenged.

Appellant also argues that respondent's theory of recovery is "injurious falsehood" or "disparagement" as summarized

ized by W. L. Prosser in his Handbook of the Law of Torts, § 128 at 919 (4th ed. 1971) and cites two Utah cases as support of Prosser's theory; Pender v. Dowse, 1 Utah 2d 283, 265 P.2d 644 (1954) and Western States Title Insurance Co. v. Warnock, 18 Utah 2d 70, 415 P.2d 316 (1966).

Respondent would point out to the Court that both Pender and Western States Title are slander of title actions.

Pender can be distinguished from the instant case in that the defendant had a valid judgment for costs against the plaintiff. (emphasis added)

His acts in having the execution issued, levying on the property and having it sold at sheriff's sale all reflected the true nature of the claim; that is, that these actions were taken to satisfy a judgment for costs.... (at 650). (emphasis added).

The bank is now before this Court having actually damaged the respondent's business reputation without benefit of legal process at the time of the injury. In the instant case the bank performed the various acts complained of thereby forcing the other party (Globe) to resort to the courts. (emphasis added). The two cases are squarely in opposition.

Western States Title, plaintiff and appellant, was denied relief by this Court:

Unless we hold that the language claimed to constitute a libel is libelous per se, since plaintiff does not allege any special damages (therefrom) the ruling of the trial court cannot be reversed. (emphasis added).

Globe alleged, and proved to the satisfaction of the trial court, its damages.

Furthermore, respondent does not accept fully appellant's proffer of Prosser as the controlling authority. 86 C.J.S. § 43 at 956 and 957 (citing cases) avers that wrongful interference with prospective contracts or the right to pursue a lawful business, calling, trade or occupation has been "generally held to constitute a tort,.... Even though no wrongful or unlawful means are employed to accomplish the result" Prosser's "injurious falsehood" and "disparagement" theory has only been accepted in the courts of five states (New York, Pennsylvania, Texas, Illinois and Florida) on a limited basis and in only one Federal District Court (New York). 86 C.J.S. 48 at 971.

Appellant addresses argument to tortious interference with contractual relations in Appellant's Brief at 14 which asserts, "Obviously, an element of that cause of action is interference with some existing contractual relationship of the plaintiff. Specifically the action is for inducing a party to breach a contract with plaintiff." Appellant is attempting to mislead this Court. As has been briefly mentioned, supra, the lost business profits prayed for in this action were those profits to be derived from prospective contracts over the years. The amount of loss which resulted from the interference with the existing sixty or so leases is miniscule as compared to the profits to be expected in future years as estimated by Mr. Stuart. That area will be more thoroughly covered, infra.

Appellant also argues at length that the Court below enumerated its Findings of Fact without any mention of the bank's purported privilege to interfere with the business of Globe. Appellant cites Gammon v. Federated Milk Producers Association, 11 Utah 2d 421, 360 P.2d 1018, 1022 as authority for the privileged inducement of breach of contract. Again, we are not so much concerned with the breach of existing contracts as we are Globe's inability to continue in business and acquire additional contracts. The language in Gammon speaks to a different proposition anyway, i.e., that the privilege spoken of is "an absolute right - that is, an act which a person has a definite legal right to do without any qualification." (emphasis added).

The "qualifications" are apparent throughout the trial record.

In the first place, the bank relies on after the fact knowledge to assert their so-called right or privilege. The bank's president at the time of the termination of the agreement with Globe, Mr. Parker, testified that the bank was not even aware of the "double financing matter" (Tr. Vol. II 128) until after the actions of the bank complained of herein. Nor could the bank have had any knowledge of the "forged lease" until some time after the funds were frozen (Tr. 151, 152). The bank surely does not rely on Globe's use of the "security deposits" to assert its so-called privilege. Mr. Stuart testified without objection thereto that not only leasing companies

but also banks and "all types of businesses" traditionally and commonly use security deposits as working capital. For the bank then to assert that the conversion of deposits into working capital is not good practice for a leasing company but is all right if you're a bank is disingenuous and self-serving.

The strongest inference to be drawn from Mr. Parker's testimony is that the bank "pulled the plug," on Globe because Globe had grossly exceeded their lending limits and had undertaken too many leases with a company, Leisureamerica, which was not credit worthy (Tr. Vol. II 92 and 97).

The tenuous nature of appellant's position on that matter is pointed out through the testimony of Mr. Perry, who, at the time in question was the bank employee with the immediate authority to approve the Globe lease agreements. Mr. Perry testified that the bank had final approval or veto power on all credit applications of potential leases proposed by Globe (Tr. Vol. 18 and 19). The credit information was telephoned to the bank by Globe whereupon they conducted their own "independent investigation." About one third of the credit applications were not approved by the bank. Some of the applications might have gotten through without approval. However, there was nothing in the record to indicate anyone other than the bank was at fault for that.

1. Since Globe had no control over approval of credit how can the bank tortiously assert their "privilege" against Globe because the bank itself was the one who approved too much credit out through Globe accounts.

2. Likewise, since the bank had total control over credit approval, where is the justification for alarm over the numerous leases out to Leisureamerica? While respondent agrees there is basis for alarm, it is the bank and not Globe which appears from the record to be in need of policing.

Further negating any privilege which might arise under the Uniform Commercial Code, Article 9 (70A-9-502 Utah Code Anno., 1953) is the pure and simple fact that appellant could not prove at trial that Globe was in default on July 15, 1974 when appellant froze Globe's funds. The Court below specifically found no such default at the time the funds were frozen.

Furthermore, in the case cited by appellant as the law in our state concerning the necessity for specific Findings of Fact upon all the material issues, Legrand Johnson Corp. v. Peterson, 18 Utah 2d 260, 420 P.2d 615 (1966), this Court was faced with a very different and unusual decision.

We are at a loss to understand why no findings of fact were made in the instant case. 420 P.2d 616.

This Court was disturbed that absolutely no Findings of Fact were presented by the trial judge. In the instant case the trial judge has enumerated seventeen Findings of Fact. That the Court was convinced no absolute right or privilege existed in the bank is implicit in the Findings. If the Court below chose to find such a privilege, the Court could have done so

since the privilege grows out of the same relationship the acts complained of arose from. Respondent asserts that by finding that the bank's acts were tortious the Court implicitly found no privilege because one did not exist.

One additional attempt by appellant, in their (mis)Statement of Fact, to attribute culpable behavior to Globe in order to justify the bank's tortious freezing of the Globe accounts should be briefly mentioned. In Appellant's Brief at page seven it is explained that the bank at first advanced credit to Globe on each lease for the amount of each lease but that Globe later "changed that practice" and began getting an additional 10% (Tr. 12-13, 41; Vol. II 57, 123). Now who holds the cards here? As in the aforementioned credit approvals/investigations and the Leisureamerica leases it is the bank in the position to approve or deny and it is the bank who now comes before this Court and says "we did it wrong and now we want our money back." Further, a more careful reading of the trial transcript quoted above will reflect that Mr. Perry, albeit reluctantly, approved Globe's practice of adding 10% to the price of each lease.

II.

THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT TRIAL SUPPORTS THE CONCLUSION OF LAW THAT APPELLANT TORTIOUSLY INTERFERED WITH THE BUSINESS RELATIONS OF THE RESPONDENT.

As already pointed out above, the Findings of Fact are sufficient to support the Conclusions of Law in this matter.

A. That the bank's actions herein complained of were sufficient to create the innuendo of lack of credit worthiness is apparent from the record. Appellant's Brief at pages 18 and 19 admits that Globe was not delinquent in any of its payments to the bank, then dismisses Globe's payment record as insubstantial in light of its use of security deposits as operative capital (a common practice in the business according to the evidence); Globe's double financing of one automobile (a fact unknown to the bank at the time of their actions); the issuance of a forged lease (again, only known to the bank after the actions of July 15 and furthermore, the evidence did not inculcate any of Globe's employees or agents re the forgery); and Globe's thin capitalization (which was known to the bank before they extended nearly \$400,000 in credit).

The bank does not dispute that their actions put Globe out of business, i.e., created the innuendo and the atmosphere whereby Globe could not obtain further financing after having relied to their detriment on the bank. The bank merely alleges misconduct on the part of Globe after the damage is done. Respondent submits that the bank merely panicked at the sight of so much money being out to one account, then set out to eliminate that problem by eliminating the account itself, i.e., Globe, rather than policing the same and now comes before this Court and says, "yeah, but we were right after all." Respondents

do not deny the bank their right to correct their mistakes; however, the issue here is that in doing so, they don't cause injury to others as they have chosen to do here.

It is not totally without significance that Mr. Parker may have never known about the abundance of Globe leases had he not observed a "very striking lady" (Mrs. Weigelt) and asked to see her file (Tr. 92). We are left to wonder whether or not Globe would be a flourishing business today if Mr. Weigelt's taste in women were not so good.

B. Appellant again speaks of privilege and claims a statutory right (Appellant's Brief at page 19) to take the action it did. In plain fact there is no such statutory right. Appellant mentions no statute; the record contains no such statute. If appellant is referring to Article 9 of the U.C.C., respondent would stipulate that that is the test (70A-9-502 Utah Code Anno. 1953); however, by appellant's own admission that the Globe accounts were not delinquent, it is Globe and not the bank who should find comfort with Article 9.

Appellant cites Flinco, Inc. v. Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company, 17 Utah 2d 173, 406 P.2d 911 as authority for its right to terminate an existing contract. A closer reading of that decision shows that Goodyear terminated its contract by giving thirty days' written notice pursuant to a specific term, paragraph 14," of the contract.

If appellant relies on Flinco, then appellant impliedly relies on the written terms of each existing lease assignment. Exhibit 20-P to the trial transcript is one such representative agreement. Paragraph five sets forth default in payment, inter alia, as the basis for terminating the contract. Paragraph six is titled "REMEDIES" and directs the Secured Party to the U.C.C., inter alia, for redress for the default.

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